
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Winnebago County Courthouse 
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room, 8th Floor and 
(In Person Meeting with Zoom Option) 

 
Thursday, June 10, 2021 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ...................................... Board Member Angela Fellars 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentation – Scott Bloomquist, Regional Superintendent, ROE4 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  
E. Proclamations – “LGBTQ Pride Month” Presented to Phyllis Gallisath, PFLAG and Liam 

Foundation 
“Juneteenth National Freedom Day” Presented to Tommy Meeks, Juneteenth Committee 
 

6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of May 13, 2021 minutes  
B. Layover of May 27, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – None 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. County Administrator Appointment of Deb Crozier as Winnebago County Human 

Resources Director 
B. New Milford Fire Protection District to be Laid Over 30 Days 

1. Rob Sickler (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2024 
C. Cherry Valley Fire Protection District to be Laid Over 30 Days 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

1. William LeFevre (Reappointment), Cherry Valley, Illinois, May 2020 – May 2023 
2. Rebecca Ihne (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2024 
3. Karl Ericksen, (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2019 – May 2022 

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Approving the Hiring of Outside Legal Counsel for Labor Negotiations 
3. Ordinance Approving the Hiring of Outside Legal Counsel for Labor Negotiations 

Budget to be Laid Over 
4. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Dennis D. Ballinger v. Frank Haney, 

Chairman of the Winnebago County Board and the Winnebago County Board) 
5. Ordinance Authorizing a Budget Adjustment for Settlement of Litigation (Dennis D. 

Ballinger v. Frank Haney, Chairman of the Winnebago County Board and the 
Winnebago County Board) to be Laid Over 

6. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Self-Represented Litigant Grant to 
be Laid Over 

7. Resolution for Approval for Workman’s Compensation Settlements 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report   
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Urging the General Assembly and Governor to Assist Counties Required to 

Meet Deadlines to Reapportion County Board Districts Without Updated Federal 
Census Data 

3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with SwedishAmerican 
Health System for Onsite Wellness Center Services 

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report      

 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

12. Announcements & Communications .................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)  



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, June 24, 2021 



 

  
 

Awards,  
Presentations,  

Public Hearings,  
Public Participation & 

Proclamations 

 
 



The Regional Office of Education

Scott Bloomquist

Regional Superintendent

Allison Pierson

Assistant Regional 

Superintendent



Who are we? What do we do?
We are a team of leaders, working together, to do everything we can to support and serve the 

districts, schools, students and communities of Boone and Winnebago Counties.

Public School Districts

● 8- Unit Districts (K-12)

● 4 - Elementary Districts

● 1 - High School District

Public School Buildings

● 61 - Elementary Schools

● 19 - Junior High/Middle Schools

● 14 - High Schools

● 8 - Other Buildings

2020 Student Enrollment

13 Public Schools – 55,342

● 8119 Belvidere CUSD #100

● 1568 North Boone CUSD #200

● 6480 Harlem UD #122

● 1807 Kinnikinnick CCSD #131

● 737 Prairie Hill CCSD #133

● 100 Shirland CCSD #134

● 1554 Rockton SD #140

● 29142 Rockford SD #205

● 1962 Hononegah CHD #207

● 966 County of Winnebago SD #320

● 937 Pecatonica CUSD #321

● 600 Durand CUSD #322

● 1370 Winnebago CUSD #323

22 Non-Public Schools – 5,572

Total Enrollment – 60,914



Central Office Services provided to the region 

through our front office:

● Fingerprinting

● Pearson Vue Testing Center

○ GED 

○ Paraprofessional

○ EMT

○ Teacher/Administrator 

● School Bus Driver classes and 

certification/recertification 

● Regional Spelling Bee

● IL Work Permits

● Home School Registration

● Educator Licensure Specialist

Mary Wilson Jamie Watts                Stephanie Putzstuck

 Denise Rux Jean Kearney



ROE4+
Professional Learning Department

● Boone, WInnebago and 
McHenry Counties

● Teacher and Administration 
Professional Development

● Work with schools to come 
up with strategic plans for 
school improvement

● Facilitate conversations 
with professional groups of 
educators and school 
personnel

Chris Collins

Director of Networks 

and Partnerships

Kim Maville

Director of Systems

and Supports

Diane Capriola

Professional Development 

Coordinator



At Risk Student 
Services

Meghan Hawkinson

Director of 

At Risk Student Services

Truancy 
● Truancy Intervention for 12/13 

school districts in 
Boone/Winnebago counties
○ Currently serving 

approximately 475 students
McKinney Vento (Homeless) 
● Grant Recipient 
● Aid in identifying and serving 

students in transition
● Support local Homeless 

Liaisons in all 13 school districts
○ Aid Liaisons in training 

school staff to identify McV 
eligible students



Alternative School Opened in the beginning of the 
20-21 school year

Programs:

● RSSP 
● ALOP
● TAOEP
● GED



Health Life Safety

Don Keigher

Director of 

Special Projects

School Inspections
● Annual safety inspections of 

over 100 school and related 
buildings

Construction and Remodeling 
● Review of construction plans
● Code Compliance

○ Issuance of appropriate 
building permits

○ Issuance of occupancy 
permit



Thank you!

Scott Bloomquist

Regional Superintendent

sbloomquist@roe4.org

ROE ANNUAL REPORT:  https://drive.google.com/file/d/1y0C4dghrh0SH5ZDaZZJHHHF6xPF5EzNy/view

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1y0C4dghrh0SH5ZDaZZJHHHF6xPF5EzNy/view


CURRICULUM

DIRECTOR

Sandra Zane

Assistant

BOONE WINNEBAGO ROE4 DELIVERABLES

COMMUNICATONS

SPECIALIST

**BUSINESS   

 MANAGER

SERVICE FY19 FY20   FY21 To Date
Fingerprinting

Licensure Substitute Teachers

Home Schooling

Homeless Students

Compliance
HLS Visits

3-Year District School Code Audit

Non-Public School Recognition Audit 
(TBD Each Year)

Testing Center
Paraprofessional Testing  

2,249 1,703 1,110

Began Tracking FY20 108

Work Permits 74 114 122

N/A 38 Families (40 Students) 19 Families (39 Students)

Truancy
Open Truancy Cases 202 211 69

Court Appearances

Closed Truancy Cases
707 755   545

1975N/A

Identified by McKinney Vento Act 3,140 3,084 1,125

112 Buildings Inspected 112 Buildings Inspected 113 Buildings Inspected

4 4 5

Pearson VUE

GED

ROE

Jail (includes Practice Tests)
Illinois Constitution Tests

Diplomas Issued

Transcripts

Bus Driver Training
Initial

Refresher

81

0 0 8

Construction Building Permits 73 93 45

119 88 49

2,603   1,039 1,679

593 421 460

121 169 15
302 225 Requirement Ended 2.1.21

292 115 182

806 550 544

175  (11 Classes) 178  (16 Classes) 133  (16 Classes)

830  (32 Classes) 830  (8 Online Classes, 29
In-Person Classes)

712  (3 Online Classes, 35
In-Person Classes)



DIRECTOR OF

SYSTEMS/SUPPORTS

& SCHOOL

IMPROVEMENT (3)

PROFESSIONAL

LEARNING

FACILITATOR

**DIRECTOR OF 

AT-RISK STUDENT

SERVICES

CURRICULUM

DIRECTOR

**COMPLIANCE

DIRECTOR

CUSTOMER SERVICE RECEPTION

LICENSURE

COMPLIANCE

SUB LICENSURE

SUBSTITUTE NETWORK

FINGERPRINTING

GED TESTING

PARA-PRO TESTING

PEARSON TESTING

JAIL TESTING

WORK PERMITS

HOME SCHOOL

BUS DRIVER TRAINING

PROFESSIONAL LEARNING

COORDINATOR

ATTENDANCE

INTERVENTIONIST (7)

EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR

ASSISTANT PROFESSIONAL

LEARNING COORDINAOR

Sandra Zane

Assistant

REGIONAL SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS                                                  ASSISTANT REGIONAL SUPERINTENDENT

BOONE WINNEBAGO ROE4 FY22 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

CENTRAL OFFICE PROFESSIONAL LEARNING AT-RISK STUDENT SERVICES SUMMIT ACADEMY

PROGRAM

ADMINISTRATOR

(3)

DIRECTOR OF

SUPPORT

SERVICES

CERTIFIED TEACHER (30)

NON-CERTIFIED SUPPORT STAFF (3)

COUNSELOR (3)

DRUG & ALCOHOL COUNSELOR (1)

SOCIAL WORKER (1)

HEALTHCARE ASSISTANT (1)

INTERVENTIONIST (7)

PARAPROFESSIONAL (3)

ATTENDANCE SPECIALIST (1)

OTHER

TECHNOLOGY 

 DIRECTOR

HUMAN

RESOURCES

DIRECTOR

COMMUNICATONS

SPECIALIST

**BUSINESS   

 MANAGER

*100% OF SALARY PAID BY COUNTY
**PORTION OF SALARY FUNDED BY COUNTY

BUSINESS

MANAGER

*DIRECTOR OF

FINANCE

COMMUNICATIONS

SPECIALIST

CURRICULUM

DIRECTOR

*OFFICE MANAGER

*EDUCATION 

SERVICES 

COORDINATOR

*ADMINISTRATIVE

SECRETARY (3)

PT TESTING CTR PROCTOR (2)







 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 



























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
 
I have been a resident of Winnebago County for 45 years. 
 
I am asking to be considered for reappointment to the                                          
 
New Milford Fire Protection District board as the Treasurer Trustee. 
 
I have been Treasurer for 3 terms and have served under                         
 
many boards presidents. 
 
I would like to continue as New Milford Fire Protection District Treasurer. 
 
Before becoming a trustee, I was a Fire Fighter with New Milford Fire   
 
Protection District for 10 years. 
 
With the experience listed I believe I am qualified to continue as board treasurer. 
 
 
Robert M. Sickler 
 
815-871-1755 
 
robsickler17@gmail.com 
 

mailto:robsickler17@gmail.com


 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: June 10, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees on the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District Board 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Karl Ericksen, Rockford, Illinois, 3-year reappointment May 19 – May 22  
William LeFevre, Cherry Valley, Illinois, 3-year reappointment May 20 – May 23 
Rebecca Ihne, Rockford, Illinois, 3-year reappointment May 21 – May 24 
 

About the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District 
Location:  4919 Blackhawk Road, Cherry Valley, IL 
Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to the Village 

of Cherry Valley and Winnebago and Boone Counties 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District AT (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 









Rebecca Sue (Cornman) Ihne 

Education: 
 •    June 1963  -  Graduation from Rockford East High School   
 •    June 1967  -  Bachelor’s Degree in Education from Northern Illinois University 
 •    August 1972  -  Master’s  Degree in Outdoor Education from Northern Illinois Univ. 
 •    About 40  credits earned beyond Master’s Degree in Education in Reading, Early   
  Childhood, and Behavior Disorders 

Employment: 
 •   1967-1971  -  Rockford School District 205 
       Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1971-1972  -  Part time in Rockford School District 
        Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1972-1974  -  Breaks to have 2 children. 
      Subbed in Rockford District   
      Taught summer school in Rockford School District 
 •Summer 1974   Supervised Student Teachers from Northern Illinois University 
 •   1975-1976  -  Full time in Rockford School District 
         Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1976-1981  -  Kinnikinnick School District 
        Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
         Reading Instructor for 4th & 5th Grade students 
 •   1981-1986  -  Subbed in Rockford School District  
 •   1986-2000  -  Rockford Public School District 
         Teacher for Behavior Disordered Students  (1981-1995) 
                   Reading Specialist & Implementor at Stiles Elementary  (1995-2000) 
        Supervised Student Teachers from Northern Illinois University  
 •   2000     Retired from Teaching  
 •   2007-2013    Cherry Valley Fire Protection District - Fire Commissioner - Secretary 
 •.  2013-Present  Cherry Valley Fire Protection District - Trustee - Secretary 

Page �1





 
 

 
Karl J. Ericksen 815.378.9157 
3718 Gnarl Tree Lane, Cherry Valley, IL 61016 kericksen@icloud.com 
 
Professional Profile 
 
Over 14 years of experience with the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District, as well as 10+ years 
of experience with other fire departments and agencies through instructing and committees.  
Approximately 2 years as Fire Department Director of Training.  Current profession offers day-
to-day involvement with tasks and responsibilities associated with operating a well-respected, 
manufacturing business, locally owned. 
 

• Respected Leader amongst the ranks 
of Fire Fighters and Officers 

• Ability to perform and execute under 
high stress situations  

• Dedicated to Training and Education  

• Dedicated to the profession and the 
people we served 

• Continuous Improvement 
• Countless hours dedicated to teaching 

and training 

Professional Experience 
 
ROCKFORM CARBIDE MANUFACTURING, INC., Rockford, IL 1997 – Current 

• 1997 – 1999: General Clerk 
o Customer communication, shipping & receiving, general sales 

 
• 1999 – 2003:  Sales Representative 

o Managed sales and growth for several product lines 
 

• 2003 – 2008:  Operations Manager 
o Responsible for the day to day operations company wide, 8-10 employees, 

answered directly to owners 
 

• 2008 – 2014:  Sales Manager 
o Responsible for all sales and marketing that relates to the company worldwide 

 
• 2014 – Current:  Vice President & Owner 

o Day-to-day operations of entire company 
 

CHERRY VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, Cherry Valley, IL 1992 – Current 
• 1992 – 1995:  Junior Firefighter 

o Attend trainings and events to learn the “trade” 
 
• 1995 – 2003: Firefighter 

o Typical firefighter duties, including, but not limited to, attending weekly 
trainings, outside classes and education, meetings, emergency calls, 
association activities, and public events 

• 2003 – 2005: Director of Training 
o Responsible for training, training grounds and equipment, and training 

records for the entire department.  Organized weekly training schedules, 
requirements and new recruit induction training classes. 



Karl J.  Ericksen • 815.378.9157 • kericksen@icloud.com 
 

 
 

• 2014 – 2015: Fire Commissioner 
o Board member responsible for the hiring, promotions, discipline and 

termination of the full time Cherry Valley Fire Fighters 
• 2015 – Present: Trustee 

o Board member responsible for the budget and policy of the district.  Active in 
Fire District functions, including open houses, promotional ceremonies, and 
other activities involving the community.    

 
 
Professional Achievements 
 

• 2 Time recipient of the Firefighter of the Year Award 
• Recipient of Department Commendation for Successful Rescue in House Fire 
• Certified Instructor I, Fire Fighter II, SCUBA, Open Water Rescue, EMT-B 
• Respected leader amongst the ranks for Firefighters and Officers 
• Past President of the Cherry Valley Firefighters Association 
• Founding member of the Regional Recruit Academy to assist in the induction training of 

new firefighters for local volunteer fire departments 
 
Education 
 
Northern Illinois University, DeKalb, IL 

• 3 Years completed 
 
References 
 

• References are available upon request. 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 























































 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by:  Keith McDonald    County Board Meeting: June 10, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
RESOLUTION URGING THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY AND GOVERNOR TO ASSIST 

COUNTIES REQUIRED TO MEET DEADLINES TO REAPPORTION COUNTY 
BOARD DISTRICTS WITHOUT UPDATED FEDERAL CENSUS DATA 

 
WHEREAS, Illinois law (55 ILCS 5/2-3001, et seq.) requires that county board districts 

be redrawn every ten years and requires the utilization of the federal census data to properly 
reapportion the county board districts; and  
 

WHEREAS, due to the COVID-19 pandemic interfering with the decennial census 
process, the U.S. Census Bureau missed its statutory deadline of December 31, 2020, to deliver 
population counts to the President and Congress; and 
 

WHEREAS, this further caused the U.S. Census Bureau to miss its April 1, 2021, 
deadline to send redistricting counts to the states; and  
 

WHEREAS, this has caused an unpreventable consequence for Winnebago County, 
Illinois being unable to meet the requirements of the Illinois statute (55 ILCS 5/2-3001, et seq.) 
to reapportion county board districts by July 1, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Census Bureau has announced that it will not release the new 
census data until September 2021; and  
 

WHEREAS, without the federal census data, Illinois counties, including Winnebago 
County will not be able to fulfill statutory obligations and timetables to redraw county board 
districts in a manner that utilizes the most recent and updated population counts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the ability to reapportion county board districts using updated numbers is 
essential to preserving elected representation at the county level that reflects the true and 
accurate population within Winnebago County; and  
 

WHEREAS, the accuracy for representation is essential for giving voters a meaningful 
voice within their government and is therefore the foundation for maintaining the integrity and 
substance of representative government and our democratic institutions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois urges the General Assembly and the Governor to work with county leaders 
toward a viable solution intended to address the delay in the federal census data and to ensure 
that county board districts can be reapportioned using the most accurate numbers. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Clerk, Winnebago 
County Administrator, and the Winnebago County Director of Development Services. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman           John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby               Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________           ____________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________      _____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd          Dorothy Redd 
 
__________________________________        _____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Thursday, June 3, 2021   
   Committee: Operations & Administrative 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: buildingdept@wincoil.us      

 

Document Title:  Resolution Urging The General Assembly And Governor To Assist Counties 
Required To Meet Deadlines To Reapportion County Board Districts Without Updated Federal 
Census Data 
 
 
State Law:  55ILCS 5/2-3001, et seq. 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021  
 
Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   $ 

 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  Budget Impact:  

 
Background Information: 
Every 10 years the U.S Census Bureau counts the U.S. population as mandated by the U.S. 
Constitution. The State of Illinois requires that Counties sized and structured as Winnebago 
County reapportion the board districts by July 1, 2021. Statute further requires a meeting to be 
held by the 3rd Wednesday of May regarding a reapportionment plan. However, due to the 
federal government missing the set deadlines, this process (redistricting) is not able to follow the 
outlined statute. The U.S. Census Bureau data must be used for the reapportionment of county 
board districts and cannot be substituted. Until the U.S. Census Bureau provides the data, the 
County is unable to proceed with reapportioning. The County Board Chairman sent a letter 
addressing these concerns to the Illinois General Assembly Representatives. 
 
Recommendation:  
Winnebago County Administration recommends complying with State Statute, until further 
direction can be given by the State.  
 
Contract/Agreement: 
No 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes – State Statute. 
 
Follow-Up: 
The County Board Chairman will update the Board as the situation develops. 

http://www.wincoil.us/




















  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier/Human Resources  
Committee:    Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:   June 3, 2021  
Resolution Title:  Resolution Authorizing the Renewal of the Onsite Wellness Center 
Board Meeting Date:   June 10, 2021 
 
 
Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted?        Yes                    Appropriation Amount:   3.3%                                      

If not, explain funding source:   
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  48510/43175   Budget Impact:  No 

 
Background Information:    The County of Winnebago implemented an onsite Wellness Center on 
October 1, 2013.  Effective July 1, 2019, SwedishAmerican Health System took over operating the Wellness 
Center.  Initially, the Center was only utilized by employees and their dependents that elected the group 
health insurance plan.  Over the past few several years, we have added pre-employment physicals, drug 
screens, and work comp services to the Center. 
  
Recommendation:   The Operations and Administrative Committee, chaired by Keith McDonald, has 
reviewed the resolution presented to the Board and recommends its approval.  Rates for the Onsite 
Wellness Center are increasing 3.3% effective July 1, 2021, 3% effective July 1, 2022 and 3% effective July 1, 
2023. 

Contract/Agreement:   July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s office. 
 
Follow-Up:   If approved, this would be effective July 1, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


                                   County Board:  June 10, 2021  
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH SWEDISHAMERICAN 
HEALTH SYSTEM FOR ONSITE WELLNESS CENTER SERVICES 

  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers to its employees with the group health 

insurance the option of utilizing an onsite Center; and, 
 

WHEREAS, in February 2019, the County sent out a bid to six vendors (including two local 
hospitals) for onsite Wellness Center Services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County awarded services to SwedishAmerican Health System for two (2) year 

contract agreement with the option of three (3) additional one (1) year terms; and,      
 
 WHEREAS, SwedishAmerican Health System has proposed the following rate increases to 
the County of Winnebago effective July 1, 2021: 
 

July 1, 2021-June 30, 2022  3.3% Increase 
July 1, 2022-June 30, 2023  3% Increase 

             July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024  3% Increase 
 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal agreement, RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A, and 
recommends that the County Board authorize execution of an agreement with SwedishAmerican 
for the administration of the onsite Wellness Center services.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
with SwedishAmerican Health System, 1313 East State Street, Rockford, IL 61104 for administration 
of the onsite Wellness Center services. 
   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, the 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 
 
 
 



    Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
(July 1, 2021) 

 
 

THIS EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(this "Agreement") is entered into as of the 1st day of July, 2021, ("Effective Date") by and 
between SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL, an Illinois not for profit corporation 
("SwedishAmerican") and WINNEBAGO COUNTY, an Illinois body politic. 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY and SWEDISHAMERICAN may be referred to individually as 
a "Party" or collectively as the "Parties" to this Agreement. 

 
WHEREAS, WINNEBAGO COUNTY is an Illinois body politic located in 

northern Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, SwedishAmerican is a division of UW Health, operates two (2) 

licensed hospitals, and provides a wide range of inpatient, outpatient, and ambulatory 
health care services, including primary care and wellness services to the residents of 
northern Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, WINNEBAGO COUNTY desires to contract with SwedishAmerican 

for the provision of certain health and wellness services to WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s 
employees and their eligible dependents; and 

 
WHEREAS, SwedishAmerican and WINNEBAGO COUNTY have reached an 

agreement on the terms and conditions under which the health and wellness services will 
be provided. 
  



2  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Definitions. 
 

(a) "Clinic" means the Winnebago County Health and Wellness Center 
located at 526 W. State Street, Rockford, Illinois 61101 and to be operated to provide 
Primary Care and Wellness Services to eligible WINNEBAGO COUNTY employees and 
their families as defined under this Agreement and state and federal law. 

 
(b) "Covered Services" means Primary Care and Wellness Services and 

Occupational Medicine Services. 
 

(c) "Member' or "Members" means each individual or all individuals 
enrolled to receive Primary Care and Wellness Services, or Occupational Medicine 
Services, at Clinic under this agreement. 
 

(d) "Occupational Medicine Services” means those services to be 
provided by SwedishAmerican to Members who are employed by WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY, as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
  (e) "Payor" means WINNEBAGO COUNTY and its agents and 
representatives, including any insurer, third party administrator, or the like, of 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s health plans. 
 
  (f) "Primary Care and Wellness Services" means those services to be 
provided by SwedishAmerican to Members under this Agreement, as set forth on Exhibit 
B attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
  (g) "Reimbursable Non-Covered Services" means reasonable and 
necessary health care services furnished to a Member that are not Covered Services, but 
are eligible for reimbursement under a health plan maintained by WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY. 
 
  (h) "Term Year" means each twelve (12)-month period beginning July 1 
and ending June 30 during the term of this Agreement. 
 
  (i) "Health Plan" means the overall health benefits provided by a 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY employer sponsored health plan for its employees and their 
dependents pursuant to one or more plan documents. 
 
 



3  

 2. Obligations of SwedishAmerican. 
 
  (a) Provision of Covered Services. SwedishAmerican agrees to provide 
Covered Services to Members, at the Clinic. The Clinic will be operated in conformance 
with the quality standards offered to all SwedishAmerican patients at all of its clinic 
locations and those required by the County. The Clinic will be open not less than forty (40) 
hours per week (except as any week's schedule is reduced by holidays) exclusively for 
Members, by walk in or appointment, on such schedule as is mutually agreeable to the 
Parties. Holidays are: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, 4th of July, Labor Day, 
Thanksgiving Day Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day. Covered Services shall be provided 
by licensed physician assistants and/or advanced practice nurses who will be supervised by 
physicians (primarily family practice physicians), (collectively, the "Clinic Practitioners"). 
Staffing at the Clinic will include the following support staff positions: one (1) advanced 
practice provider and one (1) medical assistant.  
 
  (b) Branding of Clinic. The Clinic shall be publicly identified as the 
Winnebago County Health and Wellness Center.  SwedishAmerican shall  be responsible 
for the branding on all Clinic materials and all related wellness program  materials  related 
to services operated and managed by SwedishAmerican. 
 
  (c) Medical Records. SwedishAmerican shall maintain a personal and 
confidential medical record for each Member receiving Covered Services pursuant to this 
Agreement. Medical records shall contain such information as determined appropriate by 
SwedishAmerican in conformance with generally accepted medical practice and as 
required by state and federal laws and regulations. Medical records shall be and remain the 
property of each applicable Member and SwedishAmerican (as applicable) and shall not 
be accessed, removed or transferred from SwedishAmerican except in accordance with 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations and SwedishAmerican's rules and 
regulations. To the extent permitted by law and SwedishAmerican's rules and regulations, 
and provided that Payor has obtained written consent from the applicable Member, 
SwedishAmerican shall permit Payor to inspect and make copies of a Member's medical 
records. Payor shall reimburse SwedishAmerican in an amount equal to 
SwedishAmerican's standard reproduction or copying charges related to the provision of 
medical records. If a Member requests that his/her records be sent to an office outside of 
the SwedishAmerican Health System, SwedishAmerican shall promptly respond to such 
request consistent with its standard policies and procedures for medical record transfers. 
 
  (d) Clinic Operating Expenses. All expenses of furnishing, equipping, 
and operating the Clinic shall be borne solely by SwedishAmerican, except as provided in 
Section 3(b) below. 
  



4  

3. Winnebago County's Obligations. 
 
  (a) Payment for Covered Services. WINNEBAGO COUNTY, on behalf 
of its members, shall pay to SwedishAmerican Fees determined in accordance with 
Exhibit C attached hereto, for all Covered Services. Except as set forth in Section 6 below, 
SwedishAmerican shall not be entitled to any additional  compensation  from 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, and shall not bill any Member for Covered Services.  
 
  (b) Clinic Space. WINNEBAGO COUNTY, at its expense, shall provide 
the Clinic space, consisting of 2640 sq. ft., at 526 W. State St., Rockford, Illinois, along 
with adequate water, electricity, heating and air conditioning. 
 
  (c) Member Identification. WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall provide to 
SwedishAmerican, a list or other means of identifying Members entitled to receive Covered 
Services, updated regularly, in a format mutually agreeable to the Parties. 
 

4. Employee Benefit Plans. WINNEBAGO COUNTY acknowledges and 
agrees that SwedishAmerican is not an insurance carrier or health plan and this Agreement 
does not establish a health plan or health care insurance coverage or provide for insured 
services. WINNEBAGO COUNTY further acknowledges and agrees that the Covered 
Services are not insured services, do not, and are not intended to, create a health plan or 
insurance policy, and do not serve as a substitute for healthcare insurance coverage for the 
employees and their dependents of WINNEBAGO COUNTY. 

 
5. Annual Review of Fees. At the request of either Party, not more often than 

annually, the Parties shall engage in a good faith review of the fees for all Covered Services. 
Any change in fees shall be set forth in a written and signed amendment to this Agreement. 
Changes to the fees will be effective on the first (1st) day of the next Term Year. 

 
6. Billing and Payment for Reimbursable Non-Covered Services. In the 

event Reimbursable Non-Covered Services are provided to any Member at the Clinic, 
SwedishAmerican shall present sufficient information to enable WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
to determine whether, and to what extent, payment to SwedishAmerican for such services 
is appropriate. 
 

7. Representations and Warranties. 
 
Each Party represents and warrants to the other Party as follows: 

 
  (a) It is an entity duly organized and validly existing under the laws of 
the State of Illinois; 
 
  (b) It has, and will have for the Term, full authority to enter into this 



5  

Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder; 
 
  (c) This Agreement constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation, 
enforceable against it in accordance with its terms; 
 
  (d) There are no proceedings by or before any governmental body or 
court, now pending or, to its knowledge, threatened against it or any of its subsidiaries that 
if adversely determined, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on 
the Party's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement; 
 
  (e) The Parties will perform their obligations in a manner that complies 
with applicable laws, regulations, ordinances and codes, including identifying and 
procuring required permits, certificates, approvals and inspections; 
 
  (f) In the event that either Party becomes aware of any facts or 
circumstances that suggest performance under this Agreement may be in violation of any 
law or regulation, it shall immediately notify the other Party. 
 
 8. Compliance with Laws. Each Party shall comply with all applicable state, 
federal, local, national and provincial laws, rules and regulations, including all applicable 
registration and licensing requirements. 
 
 9. Term and Termination. 
 
  (a) Term. Subject to the remaining provisions of this Section 9, the term 
of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect for a 
period of three (3) years (the "Term"), unless earlier terminated as provided in 9(b) or 9(c) 
below. By written agreement of the Parties, the Term may be extended for up to three (3) 
additional one (1)-year terms. 
 
  (b) Termination With Cause. Subject to Section 14 below, either Party 
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to the 
other Party if: 

1) SwedishAmerican's license or licenses to provide services 
(including but not limited to the Covered Services) or 
otherwise perform its obligations under this Agreement is/are 
terminated, suspended or restricted in any material way; 

 
2) A Party commits a material breach of this Agreement and has 

not implemented steps to cure the breach within thirty (30) 
days of written notice describing the breach with reasonable 
specificity; 

 



6  

3) In performing or failing to perform the services or any other 
obligations under this Agreement (including but not limited to 
the Covered Services), the Party violates any law in a manner 
which has or would have a material adverse effect on the other 
Party and/or any of the Members; or 

 
4) A Party is the subject of any proceedings under bankruptcy 

laws or other insolvency laws or is declared subject to judicial 
supervision or enter into liquidation. 

 
  (c) Termination Without Cause. Either Party shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without cause upon one hundred eighty (180) days' advance 
written notice to the other Party. 
 
  (d) Continuation of Obligations. In the event of termination of this 
Agreement, WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall pay SwedishAmerican in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement for all unpaid Fees as of the date of termination. Monthly fees will 
be prorated to the date of termination. 
 
 10. Insurance and Indemnity. 
 
  (a) Insurance. SwedishAmerican shall, throughout the term of this 
Agreement and as otherwise provided below, maintain, at its sole cost and expense, policies 
of insurance or a program of self-insurance providing coverage for its general liability, 
worker's compensation, and, where applicable, professional liability with minimum limits 
of liability of Two Million and No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and Three 
Million and No/100 Dollars ($3,000,000) in the aggregate. For clarification, the insurance 
limits provided herein are in no way intended to apply to malpractice insurance policies, 
and SwedishAmerican agrees that its providers who are providing the Covered Services 
will carry malpractice insurance in amounts not less than One Million and No/100 Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Three Million and No/100 Dollars ($3,000,000.00) in 
the aggregate. 
 
  (b) Indemnity by Winnebago County. Except as provided in 
Section 10(d) below, WINNEBAGO COUNTY agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless SwedishAmerican, its parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates, and their respective 
officers, directors, members, stockholders, employees and agents (the "SwedishAmerican 
indemnified parties"), from and against any liability, claim, action, loss, cost, damage or 
expense ("Liability") incurred or suffered by SwedishAmerican or any of the other 
SwedishAmerican indemnified parties to the extent that any such Liability is caused by 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY's breach of any of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 



7  

  (c) Indemnity by SwedishAmerican. Except as provided in Section 10(d) 
below, SwedishAmerican hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless, its 
parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, members, 
stockholders, employees and agents, (the "WINNEBAGO COUNTY indemnified parties") 
from and against any liability incurred or suffered by WINNEBAGO COUNTY or any of 
the other indemnified parties directly or indirectly, arising out of the acts or omissions of 
SwedishAmerican or its agents or employees arising under or relating to this Agreement. 
 
  (d) Coordination of Insurance Coverage. Notwithstanding Sections 10(b) 
and 10(c) above, the obligation of WINNEBAGO COUNTY and SwedishAmerican 
respectively to indemnify each other shall not apply to: (i) the extent that such application 
would nullify any existing insurance coverage of the indemnifying party applicable to the 
underlying event giving rise to indemnification; or (ii) that portion of any claim or loss in 
which an insurer is obligated to defend or satisfy. However, a Party's obligation to 
indemnify the other Party pursuant to Section 10(b) or 10(c) (as applicable) shall include 
the obligation to indemnify for acts, omissions, and amounts that are covered by insurance 
to the extent that damages, expenses, and costs exceed the limits of such coverage. 
 
  (e) Survival. The provision of this Section 10 will survive the termination 
or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
 11. Member Privacy. The Parties shall maintain the privacy and security of 
individually identifiable patient health information of all Members in accordance with all 
relevant state and federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the privacy 
and security standards of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
set forth at 45 CFR parts 160, 162, and 164, and agree to take such actions as necessary 
and appropriate in connection therewith. The Parties agree that this Section 11 shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 
 
 12. Relationship of Parties. This Agreement creates an independent contract 
relationship between SwedishAmerican and WINNEBAGO COUNTY solely for the 
purpose of the arrangement for and provision of Covered Services to Members, and this 
Agreement shall not constitute the formation of a partnership, joint venture, employment 
or master-servant relationship between SwedishAmerican and WINNEBAGO COUNTY. 
SwedishAmerican does not, and shall not as a result of this Agreement, have a fiduciary 
relationship with WINNEBAGO COUNTY, health plan, or any Member; and 
SwedishAmerican is not and shall not be deemed to be the "Administrator", the "Claim 
Fiduciary" or the "Named Fiduciary" of WINNEBAGO COUNTY or the sponsor of any 
health plan. No Provider providing services under this Agreement shall be considered an 
employee of WINNEBAGO COUNTY for any purpose. 
 
 13. Advertising. SwedishAmerican shall not disclose the making of this 
Agreement in any advertisement, journal, magazine or other publication or on the internet 



8  

or in any other medium, and SwedishAmerican may not use WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s 
name or logo (including any trademark of WINNEBAGO COUNTY) in any of its 
advertising or publicity material without WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s prior written consent, 
which may not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
 14. Disputes. WINNEBAGO COUNTY and SwedishAmerican shall attempt to 
amicably resolve any controversy, dispute or difference arising out of this Agreement. As 
such, any default (including a purported or alleged material breach of this Agreement by 
either Party), dispute, disagreement, controversy or claim arising out of or in connection 
with this Agreement that is not cured or cannot be resolved by the Parties within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of a notice of default or dispute, shall be referred to a Vice-President, Chief 
Financial Officer or other Senior Executive of each Party who together shall meet within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of said notice of dispute, to resolve such dispute, disagreement 
controversy or claim within a thirty (30) day period, subject to obtaining any necessary 
corporate approvals of such resolution. If a controversy, dispute or difference is not fully 
resolved within ninety (90) days of the initial notice of the controversy, dispute or 
difference, either Party may bring an action or claim related to or arising out of this 
Agreement in accordance with Section 16, Severability, Governing Law. Either Party will 
have the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief in any such court of competent 
jurisdiction. Each Party agrees to continue performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement while any dispute is being resolved unless such obligations are terminated by 
the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
 15. Notices. Any notices contemplated under this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed effectively given on the date personally delivered or on the date that 
is three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. Mail, First Class postage prepaid, posted to the 
addresses listed below, unless other addresses have been designated by written notice in 
the manner prescribed by this Section 15. Personal delivery may be accomplished by 
messenger, overnight delivery service, or similar method. 
 

If to SwedishAmerican: 
 

President and CEO 
SwedishAmerican Hospital 

1313 East State Street 
Rockford, IL 61104 

 
If to Winnebago County: 

 
Director of Purchasing Winnebago County Purchasing Department 

404 Elm Street, Room 202 
Rockford,  IL 61101 

815-319-4380 



9  

 
 16. Severability, Governing Law. If any clause or provision herein shall be 
judged invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any 
applicable law, it shall not affect the validity of any other clause or provision but shall 
remain in full force and effect. The Circuit Court for the 17th Judicial Circuit in Winnebago 
County, Illinois, shall have jurisdiction over any dispute which arises under this Agreement 
and each of the Parties submits and hereby consents to such court's exercise of jurisdiction. 
Each provision of this Agreement shall be enforceable independently of any other 
provision of this Agreement and independent of any other claim or cause of action. In the 
event of any dispute arising under this Agreement, it is agreed between the Parties that the 
laws of the State of Illinois will govern the interpretation, validity and effect of this 
Agreement without regard to the place of execution or place of performance thereof. 
 
 17. Waiver of Breach. The failure of either Party at any time to require the 
performance of the other of any of the provisions herein shall in no way affect the rights of 
the Parties to enforce the same nor shall the wavier by either Party of any breach of any 
provisions hereof be construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach or as a waiver or 
modification of the provision itself. 
 
 18. Complete Agreement, Amendment. This Agreement supersedes all prior 
agreements and understandings between the Parties. No amendment or modification of this 
Agreement shall be effective unless set forth in writing and executed by both Parties. 
 
 19. Assignment, Binding Effect. This Agreement may not be assigned. 
 
 20. Supervening Law. Any provisions of law that invalidate or otherwise are 
inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, or would cause one or both of the Parties to 
be in violation of the law, shall be deemed to have superseded the terms of this Agreement; 
provided, however, that the Parties shall accommodate the terms and intent of this 
Agreement to the greatest extent possible consistent with the requirements of the law. 
 
 21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and each counterpart hereof shall be deemed to be an original instrument, but 
all counterparts taken together shall constitute a single instrument. Signatures provided by 
facsimile, portable document format, or other electronic form shall be as binding as original 
signatures. 
  



10  

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 
set forth below, effective as of the date first set forth above. 
 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS  SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
A body politic     an Illinois not for profit corporation 
 
 
By:       By:       
Its:       Its:       
Date:     , 2021  Date:     , 2021 
 
 
Attest: 
 
By:       
Its:       
Date:     , 2021 
 
  



11  

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
Occupational Medicine 

o Drug and Alcohol Collection (including all chain of custody procedures) 
Includes FAA, DOT 10 panel, 5 panel and Rapid (with agreed upon fee 
schedule) 

o Medical Review Officer* 
o OSHA/DOT Worksite Surveillance/Compliance 
o Disability Related Medical Exams and Referrals* 
o Dedicated Injury & Illness Care/Case Management 
o Workers' Compensation- Support HR & Management 
o Worksite Illness, Injuries, Triage 
o Return-to-Work Programs (Evaluation & Management)* 
o Blood Pathogens Program 
o Laceration/Wound Care Suture Removal 
o Care for Sprains and Strains 
o Immunization (with agreed upon fee schedule) 
o Pre-employment and post-employment tests 

• Spirometry and Pulmonary 
 

* Indicates services that need close oversight or actual performance by an 
occupational health physician. Every effort will be made to have all services 
performed by the onsite staff but there may be exceptions where individuals need 
to be seen offsite at a SwedishAmerican Occupational Health clinic. 
SwedishAmerican will continue to work on the optimal delivery model to 
minimize cost and maintain convenience for Winnebago County. 

  



12  

EXHIBIT B 
to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
Primary Care Services 

o Comprehensive annual health maintenance physicals 
o Acute care for illness and injury 
o Sports medicine consultations 
o School Physicals 
o Limited generic prescriptions medication dispensing 
o Lifestyle and Disease Management Health Services 
o Basic Laboratory Services 

• CLIA-waived POS testing 
• Labs associated with annual health maintenance visit 

o Other services as mutually determined 
Note: Any services not listed above are non-covered services and are to be billed 
in accordance with this agreement. 
 
Wellness Services 

o Health Risk Assessment and Biometric Screening 
o Annual lab screen to include CMP, CBC, Lipid Profile, and Hemoglobin AlC 

Reflex for any glucose greater than 99 
o Medical Director oversight of program 
o Physician lab review, abnormal lab follow-up, PCP referrals 
o Aggregate reporting and annual review of aggregate with the BLW Medical 

Director 
o On-site health coaching 
o Wellness Education Sessions 
o Clinic based fitness sessions (with agreed upon fee schedule) 
o Customized Web portal 
o Smoking cessation 
o Monthly wellness calendar of events and promotional materials for wellness 

activities 
o Other services as mutually determined  



13  

 
EXHIBIT B-1 

to 
EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 

between 
SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 

and 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 

Appendix B - Generic Medications. 
 

Generic meds that could be dispensed in the Clinic. This is not intended to be a final list 
since this would be subject to continual updating depending on our provider reviews, 
Medical Director approval, etc. This is only for the dispensing of the initial supply of 
medications and never providing refills. The intent of the on-site dispensing is to provide 
patients with convenient no out of pocket cost medications for common short term 
problems (antibiotics for 10 days for a strep throat) or a one-month supply for a 
medication that might be used more long-term such as an antidepressant. 

 
Cost per package listed below are only to demonstrate the cost to SwedishAmerican. 
Not cost to the County. 
 

 

 
  



14  

EXHIBIT C FEES 
to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
1. WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall pay the following fees to SwedishAmerican: 

(a) An annual fee in the amount of $330,316.33 billed by 
SwedishAmerican in equal monthly installments; subject to increase at the end of 
each Term Year. The estimated increases as of July 1, 2022, and July 1, 2023, will 
be three percent (3.0%). 

 
(b) Per unit fees for items indicated to be billed to WINNEBAGO 

COUNTY on Exhibits A, B, or B-1. The following items/services are examples of 
commonly billed items/services; and the per unit fee is subject to increase at the end 
of each Term Year. Per unit fees shall be billed monthly by SwedishAmerican 
promptly after the end of the month in which the item/service is furnished. 

 
Description  Per Unit Fee 
Ankle Brace Support $44.10 
Breath Alcohol Test $21.00 
Crutches $21.00 
Drug Screen Panel 10 Non-Nida Medtox  $26.25 
Drug Screen Panel 5 Nida Medtox $26.25 
Drug Screen Test PRSMV DIR OPT OBS (Rapid) $15.75 
Elbow Elastic w/metal joint $15.75 
Finger Splint $10.50 
Influenza vaccination and administration $23.10 
KO Elastic w/joints (knee)  $37.80 
Medtox Splint $15.75 
Non-Pneum Walking Boot $68.25 
SARS-COV-2 COVID-19 Test $132.30 
WHFO No Joint Prefabricated (wrist)  $15.75 

 
2. WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall pay the fees to SwedishAmerican in 
compliance with the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 
505/1 et. seq.). 



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 
 
 

 
EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 

between 
SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 

and 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

(July 1, 2021) 

 
THIS EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(this "Agreement") is entered into as of the 1st day of July, 2021, ("Effective Date") by and 
between SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL, an Illinois not for profit corporation 
("SwedishAmerican") and WINNEBAGO COUNTY, an Illinois body politic. 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY and SWEDISHAMERICAN may be referred to individually as 
a "Party" or collectively as the "Parties" to this Agreement. 

 
WHEREAS, WINNEBAGO COUNTY is an Illinois body politic located in 

northern Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, SwedishAmerican is a division of UW Health, operates two (2) 

licensed hospitals, and provides a wide range of inpatient, outpatient, and ambulatory 
health care services, including primary care and wellness services to the residents of 
northern Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, WINNEBAGO COUNTY desires to contract with SwedishAmerican 

for the provision of certain health and wellness services to WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s 
employees and their eligible dependents; and 

 
WHEREAS, SwedishAmerican and WINNEBAGO COUNTY have reached an 

agreement on the terms and conditions under which the health and wellness services will 
be provided. 
  



2  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Definitions. 
 

(a) "Clinic" means the Winnebago County Health and Wellness Center 
located at 526 W. State Street, Rockford, Illinois 61101 and to be operated to provide 
Primary Care and Wellness Services to eligible WINNEBAGO COUNTY employees and 
their families as defined under this Agreement and state and federal law. 

 
(b) "Covered Services" means Primary Care and Wellness Services and 

Occupational Medicine Services. 
 

(c) "Member' or "Members" means each individual or all individuals 
enrolled to receive Primary Care and Wellness Services, or Occupational Medicine 
Services, at Clinic under this agreement. 
 

(d) "Occupational Medicine Services” means those services to be 
provided by SwedishAmerican to Members who are employed by WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY, as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
  (e) "Payor" means WINNEBAGO COUNTY and its agents and 
representatives, including any insurer, third party administrator, or the like, of 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s health plans. 
 
  (f) "Primary Care and Wellness Services" means those services to be 
provided by SwedishAmerican to Members under this Agreement, as set forth on Exhibit 
B attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
  (g) "Reimbursable Non-Covered Services" means reasonable and 
necessary health care services furnished to a Member that are not Covered Services, but 
are eligible for reimbursement under a health plan maintained by WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY. 
 
  (h) "Term Year" means each twelve (12)-month period beginning July 1 
and ending June 30 during the term of this Agreement. 
 
  (i) "Health Plan" means the overall health benefits provided by a 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY employer sponsored health plan for its employees and their 
dependents pursuant to one or more plan documents. 
 
 



3  

 2. Obligations of SwedishAmerican. 
 
  (a) Provision of Covered Services. SwedishAmerican agrees to provide 
Covered Services to Members, at the Clinic. The Clinic will be operated in conformance 
with the quality standards offered to all SwedishAmerican patients at all of its clinic 
locations and those required by the County. The Clinic will be open not less than forty (40) 
hours per week (except as any week's schedule is reduced by holidays) exclusively for 
Members, by walk in or appointment, on such schedule as is mutually agreeable to the 
Parties. Holidays are: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, 4th of July, Labor Day, 
Thanksgiving Day Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day. Covered Services shall be provided 
by licensed physician assistants and/or advanced practice nurses who will be supervised by 
physicians (primarily family practice physicians), (collectively, the "Clinic Practitioners"). 
Staffing at the Clinic will include the following support staff positions: one (1) advanced 
practice provider and one (1) medical assistant.  
 
  (b) Branding of Clinic. The Clinic shall be publicly identified as the 
Winnebago County Health and Wellness Center.  SwedishAmerican shall  be responsible 
for the branding on all Clinic materials and all related wellness program  materials  related 
to services operated and managed by SwedishAmerican. 
 
  (c) Medical Records. SwedishAmerican shall maintain a personal and 
confidential medical record for each Member receiving Covered Services pursuant to this 
Agreement. Medical records shall contain such information as determined appropriate by 
SwedishAmerican in conformance with generally accepted medical practice and as 
required by state and federal laws and regulations. Medical records shall be and remain the 
property of each applicable Member and SwedishAmerican (as applicable) and shall not 
be accessed, removed or transferred from SwedishAmerican except in accordance with 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations and SwedishAmerican's rules and 
regulations. To the extent permitted by law and SwedishAmerican's rules and regulations, 
and provided that Payor has obtained written consent from the applicable Member, 
SwedishAmerican shall permit Payor to inspect and make copies of a Member's medical 
records. Payor shall reimburse SwedishAmerican in an amount equal to 
SwedishAmerican's standard reproduction or copying charges related to the provision of 
medical records. If a Member requests that his/her records be sent to an office outside of 
the SwedishAmerican Health System, SwedishAmerican shall promptly respond to such 
request consistent with its standard policies and procedures for medical record transfers. 
 
  (d) Clinic Operating Expenses. All expenses of furnishing, equipping, 
and operating the Clinic shall be borne solely by SwedishAmerican, except as provided in 
Section 3(b) below. 
  



4  

3. Winnebago County's Obligations. 
 
  (a) Payment for Covered Services. WINNEBAGO COUNTY, on behalf 
of its members, shall pay to SwedishAmerican Fees determined in accordance with 
Exhibit C attached hereto, for all Covered Services. Except as set forth in Section 6 below, 
SwedishAmerican shall not be entitled to any additional  compensation  from 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, and shall not bill any Member for Covered Services.  
 
  (b) Clinic Space. WINNEBAGO COUNTY, at its expense, shall provide 
the Clinic space, consisting of 2640 sq. ft., at 526 W. State St., Rockford, Illinois, along 
with adequate water, electricity, heating and air conditioning. 
 
  (c) Member Identification. WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall provide to 
SwedishAmerican, a list or other means of identifying Members entitled to receive Covered 
Services, updated regularly, in a format mutually agreeable to the Parties. 
 

4. Employee Benefit Plans. WINNEBAGO COUNTY acknowledges and 
agrees that SwedishAmerican is not an insurance carrier or health plan and this Agreement 
does not establish a health plan or health care insurance coverage or provide for insured 
services. WINNEBAGO COUNTY further acknowledges and agrees that the Covered 
Services are not insured services, do not, and are not intended to, create a health plan or 
insurance policy, and do not serve as a substitute for healthcare insurance coverage for the 
employees and their dependents of WINNEBAGO COUNTY. 

 
5. Annual Review of Fees. At the request of either Party, not more often than 

annually, the Parties shall engage in a good faith review of the fees for all Covered Services. 
Any change in fees shall be set forth in a written and signed amendment to this Agreement. 
Changes to the fees will be effective on the first (1st) day of the next Term Year. 

 
6. Billing and Payment for Reimbursable Non-Covered Services. In the 

event Reimbursable Non-Covered Services are provided to any Member at the Clinic, 
SwedishAmerican shall present sufficient information to enable WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
to determine whether, and to what extent, payment to SwedishAmerican for such services 
is appropriate. 
 

7. Representations and Warranties. 
 
Each Party represents and warrants to the other Party as follows: 

 
  (a) It is an entity duly organized and validly existing under the laws of 
the State of Illinois; 
 
  (b) It has, and will have for the Term, full authority to enter into this 



5  

Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder; 
 
  (c) This Agreement constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation, 
enforceable against it in accordance with its terms; 
 
  (d) There are no proceedings by or before any governmental body or 
court, now pending or, to its knowledge, threatened against it or any of its subsidiaries that 
if adversely determined, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on 
the Party's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement; 
 
  (e) The Parties will perform their obligations in a manner that complies 
with applicable laws, regulations, ordinances and codes, including identifying and 
procuring required permits, certificates, approvals and inspections; 
 
  (f) In the event that either Party becomes aware of any facts or 
circumstances that suggest performance under this Agreement may be in violation of any 
law or regulation, it shall immediately notify the other Party. 
 
 8. Compliance with Laws. Each Party shall comply with all applicable state, 
federal, local, national and provincial laws, rules and regulations, including all applicable 
registration and licensing requirements. 
 
 9. Term and Termination. 
 
  (a) Term. Subject to the remaining provisions of this Section 9, the term 
of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect for a 
period of three (3) years (the "Term"), unless earlier terminated as provided in 9(b) or 9(c) 
below. By written agreement of the Parties, the Term may be extended for up to three (3) 
additional one (1)-year terms. 
 
  (b) Termination With Cause. Subject to Section 14 below, either Party 
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to the 
other Party if: 

1) SwedishAmerican's license or licenses to provide services 
(including but not limited to the Covered Services) or 
otherwise perform its obligations under this Agreement is/are 
terminated, suspended or restricted in any material way; 

 
2) A Party commits a material breach of this Agreement and has 

not implemented steps to cure the breach within thirty (30) 
days of written notice describing the breach with reasonable 
specificity; 

 



6  

3) In performing or failing to perform the services or any other 
obligations under this Agreement (including but not limited to 
the Covered Services), the Party violates any law in a manner 
which has or would have a material adverse effect on the other 
Party and/or any of the Members; or 

 
4) A Party is the subject of any proceedings under bankruptcy 

laws or other insolvency laws or is declared subject to judicial 
supervision or enter into liquidation. 

 
  (c) Termination Without Cause. Either Party shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without cause upon one hundred eighty (180) days' advance 
written notice to the other Party. 
 
  (d) Continuation of Obligations. In the event of termination of this 
Agreement, WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall pay SwedishAmerican in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement for all unpaid Fees as of the date of termination. Monthly fees will 
be prorated to the date of termination. 
 
 10. Insurance and Indemnity. 
 
  (a) Insurance. SwedishAmerican shall, throughout the term of this 
Agreement and as otherwise provided below, maintain, at its sole cost and expense, policies 
of insurance or a program of self-insurance providing coverage for its general liability, 
worker's compensation, and, where applicable, professional liability with minimum limits 
of liability of Two Million and No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and Three 
Million and No/100 Dollars ($3,000,000) in the aggregate. For clarification, the insurance 
limits provided herein are in no way intended to apply to malpractice insurance policies, 
and SwedishAmerican agrees that its providers who are providing the Covered Services 
will carry malpractice insurance in amounts not less than One Million and No/100 Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Three Million and No/100 Dollars ($3,000,000.00) in 
the aggregate. 
 
  (b) Indemnity by Winnebago County. Except as provided in 
Section 10(d) below, WINNEBAGO COUNTY agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless SwedishAmerican, its parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates, and their respective 
officers, directors, members, stockholders, employees and agents (the "SwedishAmerican 
indemnified parties"), from and against any liability, claim, action, loss, cost, damage or 
expense ("Liability") incurred or suffered by SwedishAmerican or any of the other 
SwedishAmerican indemnified parties to the extent that any such Liability is caused by 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY's breach of any of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 



7  

  (c) Indemnity by SwedishAmerican. Except as provided in Section 10(d) 
below, SwedishAmerican hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless, its 
parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, members, 
stockholders, employees and agents, (the "WINNEBAGO COUNTY indemnified parties") 
from and against any liability incurred or suffered by WINNEBAGO COUNTY or any of 
the other indemnified parties directly or indirectly, arising out of the acts or omissions of 
SwedishAmerican or its agents or employees arising under or relating to this Agreement. 
 
  (d) Coordination of Insurance Coverage. Notwithstanding Sections 10(b) 
and 10(c) above, the obligation of WINNEBAGO COUNTY and SwedishAmerican 
respectively to indemnify each other shall not apply to: (i) the extent that such application 
would nullify any existing insurance coverage of the indemnifying party applicable to the 
underlying event giving rise to indemnification; or (ii) that portion of any claim or loss in 
which an insurer is obligated to defend or satisfy. However, a Party's obligation to 
indemnify the other Party pursuant to Section 10(b) or 10(c) (as applicable) shall include 
the obligation to indemnify for acts, omissions, and amounts that are covered by insurance 
to the extent that damages, expenses, and costs exceed the limits of such coverage. 
 
  (e) Survival. The provision of this Section 10 will survive the termination 
or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
 11. Member Privacy. The Parties shall maintain the privacy and security of 
individually identifiable patient health information of all Members in accordance with all 
relevant state and federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the privacy 
and security standards of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
set forth at 45 CFR parts 160, 162, and 164, and agree to take such actions as necessary 
and appropriate in connection therewith. The Parties agree that this Section 11 shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 
 
 12. Relationship of Parties. This Agreement creates an independent contract 
relationship between SwedishAmerican and WINNEBAGO COUNTY solely for the 
purpose of the arrangement for and provision of Covered Services to Members, and this 
Agreement shall not constitute the formation of a partnership, joint venture, employment 
or master-servant relationship between SwedishAmerican and WINNEBAGO COUNTY. 
SwedishAmerican does not, and shall not as a result of this Agreement, have a fiduciary 
relationship with WINNEBAGO COUNTY, health plan, or any Member; and 
SwedishAmerican is not and shall not be deemed to be the "Administrator", the "Claim 
Fiduciary" or the "Named Fiduciary" of WINNEBAGO COUNTY or the sponsor of any 
health plan. No Provider providing services under this Agreement shall be considered an 
employee of WINNEBAGO COUNTY for any purpose. 
 
 13. Advertising. SwedishAmerican shall not disclose the making of this 
Agreement in any advertisement, journal, magazine or other publication or on the internet 



8  

or in any other medium, and SwedishAmerican may not use WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s 
name or logo (including any trademark of WINNEBAGO COUNTY) in any of its 
advertising or publicity material without WINNEBAGO COUNTY’s prior written consent, 
which may not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
 14. Disputes. WINNEBAGO COUNTY and SwedishAmerican shall attempt to 
amicably resolve any controversy, dispute or difference arising out of this Agreement. As 
such, any default (including a purported or alleged material breach of this Agreement by 
either Party), dispute, disagreement, controversy or claim arising out of or in connection 
with this Agreement that is not cured or cannot be resolved by the Parties within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of a notice of default or dispute, shall be referred to a Vice-President, Chief 
Financial Officer or other Senior Executive of each Party who together shall meet within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of said notice of dispute, to resolve such dispute, disagreement 
controversy or claim within a thirty (30) day period, subject to obtaining any necessary 
corporate approvals of such resolution. If a controversy, dispute or difference is not fully 
resolved within ninety (90) days of the initial notice of the controversy, dispute or 
difference, either Party may bring an action or claim related to or arising out of this 
Agreement in accordance with Section 16, Severability, Governing Law. Either Party will 
have the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief in any such court of competent 
jurisdiction. Each Party agrees to continue performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement while any dispute is being resolved unless such obligations are terminated by 
the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
 15. Notices. Any notices contemplated under this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed effectively given on the date personally delivered or on the date that 
is three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. Mail, First Class postage prepaid, posted to the 
addresses listed below, unless other addresses have been designated by written notice in 
the manner prescribed by this Section 15. Personal delivery may be accomplished by 
messenger, overnight delivery service, or similar method. 
 

If to SwedishAmerican: 
 

President and CEO 
SwedishAmerican Hospital 

1313 East State Street 
Rockford, IL 61104 

 
If to Winnebago County: 

 
Director of Purchasing Winnebago County Purchasing Department 

404 Elm Street, Room 202 
Rockford,  IL 61101 

815-319-4380 



9  

 
 16. Severability, Governing Law. If any clause or provision herein shall be 
judged invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any 
applicable law, it shall not affect the validity of any other clause or provision but shall 
remain in full force and effect. The Circuit Court for the 17th Judicial Circuit in Winnebago 
County, Illinois, shall have jurisdiction over any dispute which arises under this Agreement 
and each of the Parties submits and hereby consents to such court's exercise of jurisdiction. 
Each provision of this Agreement shall be enforceable independently of any other 
provision of this Agreement and independent of any other claim or cause of action. In the 
event of any dispute arising under this Agreement, it is agreed between the Parties that the 
laws of the State of Illinois will govern the interpretation, validity and effect of this 
Agreement without regard to the place of execution or place of performance thereof. 
 
 17. Waiver of Breach. The failure of either Party at any time to require the 
performance of the other of any of the provisions herein shall in no way affect the rights of 
the Parties to enforce the same nor shall the wavier by either Party of any breach of any 
provisions hereof be construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach or as a waiver or 
modification of the provision itself. 
 
 18. Complete Agreement, Amendment. This Agreement supersedes all prior 
agreements and understandings between the Parties. No amendment or modification of this 
Agreement shall be effective unless set forth in writing and executed by both Parties. 
 
 19. Assignment, Binding Effect. This Agreement may not be assigned. 
 
 20. Supervening Law. Any provisions of law that invalidate or otherwise are 
inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, or would cause one or both of the Parties to 
be in violation of the law, shall be deemed to have superseded the terms of this Agreement; 
provided, however, that the Parties shall accommodate the terms and intent of this 
Agreement to the greatest extent possible consistent with the requirements of the law. 
 
 21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and each counterpart hereof shall be deemed to be an original instrument, but 
all counterparts taken together shall constitute a single instrument. Signatures provided by 
facsimile, portable document format, or other electronic form shall be as binding as original 
signatures. 
  



10  

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 
set forth below, effective as of the date first set forth above. 
 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS  SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
A body politic     an Illinois not for profit corporation 
 
 
By:       By:       
Its:       Its:       
Date:     , 2021  Date:     , 2021 
 
 
Attest: 
 
By:       
Its:       
Date:     , 2021 
 
  



11  

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
Occupational Medicine 

o Drug and Alcohol Collection (including all chain of custody procedures) 
Includes FAA, DOT 10 panel, 5 panel and Rapid (with agreed upon fee 
schedule) 

o Medical Review Officer* 
o OSHA/DOT Worksite Surveillance/Compliance 
o Disability Related Medical Exams and Referrals* 
o Dedicated Injury & Illness Care/Case Management 
o Workers' Compensation- Support HR & Management 
o Worksite Illness, Injuries, Triage 
o Return-to-Work Programs (Evaluation & Management)* 
o Blood Pathogens Program 
o Laceration/Wound Care Suture Removal 
o Care for Sprains and Strains 
o Immunization (with agreed upon fee schedule) 
o Pre-employment and post-employment tests 

• Spirometry and Pulmonary 
 

* Indicates services that need close oversight or actual performance by an 
occupational health physician. Every effort will be made to have all services 
performed by the onsite staff but there may be exceptions where individuals need 
to be seen offsite at a SwedishAmerican Occupational Health clinic. 
SwedishAmerican will continue to work on the optimal delivery model to 
minimize cost and maintain convenience for Winnebago County. 

  



12  

EXHIBIT B 
to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
Primary Care Services 

o Comprehensive annual health maintenance physicals 
o Acute care for illness and injury 
o Sports medicine consultations 
o School Physicals 
o Limited generic prescriptions medication dispensing 
o Lifestyle and Disease Management Health Services 
o Basic Laboratory Services 

• CLIA-waived POS testing 
• Labs associated with annual health maintenance visit 

o Other services as mutually determined 
Note: Any services not listed above are non-covered services and are to be billed 
in accordance with this agreement. 
 
Wellness Services 

o Health Risk Assessment and Biometric Screening 
o Annual lab screen to include CMP, CBC, Lipid Profile, and Hemoglobin AlC 

Reflex for any glucose greater than 99 
o Medical Director oversight of program 
o Physician lab review, abnormal lab follow-up, PCP referrals 
o Aggregate reporting and annual review of aggregate with the BLW Medical 

Director 
o On-site health coaching 
o Wellness Education Sessions 
o Clinic based fitness sessions (with agreed upon fee schedule) 
o Customized Web portal 
o Smoking cessation 
o Monthly wellness calendar of events and promotional materials for wellness 

activities 
o Other services as mutually determined  



13  

EXHIBIT B-1 
to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 

Appendix B - Generic Medications. 
 

Generic meds that could be dispensed in the Clinic. This is not intended to be a final list 
since this would be subject to continual updating depending on our provider reviews, 
Medical Director approval, etc. This is only for the dispensing of the initial supply of 
medications and never providing refills. The intent of the on-site dispensing is to provide 
patients with convenient no out of pocket cost medications for common short term 
problems (antibiotics for 10 days for a strep throat) or a one-month supply for a 
medication that might be used more long-term such as an antidepressant. 

 
Cost per package listed below are only to demonstrate the cost to SwedishAmerican. 
Not cost to the County. 
 

 

 
  



14  

EXHIBIT C FEES 
to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 
and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
1. WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall pay the following fees to SwedishAmerican: 

(a) An annual fee in the amount of $330,316.33 billed by 
SwedishAmerican in equal monthly installments; subject to increase at the end of 
each Term Year. The estimated increases as of July 1, 2022, and July 1, 2023, will 
be three percent (3.0%). 

 
(b) Per unit fees for items indicated to be billed to WINNEBAGO 

COUNTY on Exhibits A, B, or B-1. The following items/services are examples of 
commonly billed items/services; and the per unit fee is subject to increase at the end 
of each Term Year. Per unit fees shall be billed monthly by SwedishAmerican 
promptly after the end of the month in which the item/service is furnished. 

 
Description  Per Unit Fee 
Ankle Brace Support $44.10 
Breath Alcohol Test $21.00 
Crutches $21.00 
Drug Screen Panel 10 Non-Nida Medtox  $26.25 
Drug Screen Panel 5 Nida Medtox $26.25 
Drug Screen Test PRSMV DIR OPT OBS (Rapid) $15.75 
Elbow Elastic w/metal joint $15.75 
Finger Splint $10.50 
Influenza vaccination and administration $23.10 
KO Elastic w/joints (knee)  $37.80 
Medtox Splint $15.75 
Non-Pneum Walking Boot $68.25 
SARS-COV-2 COVID-19 Test $132.30 
WHFO No Joint Prefabricated (wrist)  $15.75 

 
2. WINNEBAGO COUNTY shall pay the fees to SwedishAmerican in 
compliance with the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 
505/1 et. seq.). 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: June 10, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Request for Additional Information Regarding 

License Transfer Application (EPID L-2021-LLM-0000) 
 

b. Information Meeting with a Question and Answer Session to Discuss NRC 2020 
End-of-Cycle Plant Performance Assessment of Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2 
and Byron Station, Units 1 and 2 

 

c. Federal Registrar / Vol. 86, No. 103/Tuesday, June 1, 2021 / Notices 
 

d. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs 
Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station, Unit No. 1; Dresden 
Nuclear Power Station; LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; Limerick Generating 
Station, Units 1 and 2; Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Units 1 and 2; Peach 
Bottom Atomic Power Station, Units 1,2, and 3; Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station, 
Units 1 and 2; R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant ; Salem Nuclear Generating Station, 
Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Three Mile Island Nuclear Station, Unit 1; Zion Nuclear Power 
Station, Units 1 and 2; and the Associated Independent Spent Fuel Storage 
Installations – Extension of Comment Period for Notice of Consideration of 
Approval of Transfer of Licenses and Conforming Amendments and Opportunity 
to Request a Hearing (EPID L-2021-LLM-0000)   

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
2. County Clerk Gummow received from Sue Goral, Winnebago County Treasurer the 

Monthly Report for April, 2021 Bank Balances. 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, Public Participation & Proclamations
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Rob Sickler
	William LeFevre, Rebecca Ihne, Karl Ericksen
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Approving Hiring Outside Legal Counsel for Labor Negotiations
	Ordinance Approving Hiring Outside Legal Counsel for Labor Negotiations Budget
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Ballinger v. Haney) & Winn. Cty. Board
	Ordinance Authorizing Budget Adjustment for Settlement of Litigation
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Self-Represented Litigant Grant
	Resolution for Approval for Workman's Compensation Settlements
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution to Reapportion County Board Districts
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agreement with SwedishAmerican of Onsite Wellness Center
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



